
 1

Minutes 
 

Quality-Based Reimbursement initiative 
Evaluation Work Group Meeting 

September 26, 2008 
9:00 AM to 10:30 AM 

 
Health Services Cost Review Commission 

4160 Patterson Avenue 
Baltimore, MD  21215 

 
EWG Members present: Don S. Hillier, Former Chairman, HSCRC (Vice Chair); Pam 
Barclay, MHCC; Robert Brooks, MD, PhD, MBA, Delmarva Foundation for Medical 
Care, Inc.; Barbara Epke, MPH, MA, LifeBridge Health System; Charles Reuland, ScD, 
Johns Hopkins Health System; Renee B. Webster, DHMH; Robert Murray, Steve Ports, 
and Dianne Feeney, HSCRC.  
 
EWG Members on by conference call: Cynthia Hancock, Fort Washington Medical 
Center; Julie Howell, PhD, CMS; Ernest Moy, MD, AHRQ. 
 
Interested parties present:  Vahe Kazandjian, PhD, Center for Performance Sciences; 
Ing-Jye Cheng MHA; Theressa Lee, Deme Umo, and Carol Christmyer, MHCC ; 
Elizabeth McCullough, 3M; Hal Cohen, Hal Cohen, Inc.; Craig Weller, Delmarva 
Foundation; Donna Ryan, St. Joseph Medical Center. 
 
Interested parties on by conference call: Grant Ritter, PhD, Brandeis University; Sam 
Agumbo, Nikolas Mathes, Frank Pipesh and Karol Wicker, Center for Performance 
Sciences; Gerry Macks, MedStar Health, Sylvia Daniel, University of Maryland Medical 
Center. 
 
• Welcome and introduction of EWG members and other participants- Dr. Trudy Hall 

called the meeting to order and invited EWG members and interested parties joining 
the meeting in person and by conference call to introduce themselves.   

 
• Review and approval of the September 8, 2008 meeting minutes –A motion to 

approve the minutes as drafted was made and seconded with unanimous approval. 
 

• Hospital Acquired Conditions (HACs) and Payment Policy Changes – Robert 
Murray summarized the CMS approach to adjusting payment for HACs that was 
presented by Lisa Grabert at the previous EWG meeting on 9/8/08.  Mr. Murray 
noted that Maryland, as an exempt state under the waiver, needs to develop and 
adopt its own policy to keep pace with the developments at the national level with 
Medicare, and in light of the increasing pressure from various stakeholder groups 
including payers and consumers.  To address this, Mr. Murray noted that HSCRC 
has convened a Maryland Hospital Acquired Conditions (MHAC) Payment Policy 
Group comprising hospital industry and payer stakeholders that convened on 
9/25/08.  Mr. Murray noted that the group reviewed the MHA policy hospitals have 



 2

agreed to which includes non-billing for seven serious adverse events that result in 
death or serious disability.  Mr. Murray noted that HSCRC staff made an alternate 
recommendation to consider adopting a subset of 14 conditions from the 3M PPC list 
that are completely, or very close to completely, preventable, noting that the CMS 
criteria for HAC selection calls for “reasonable” preventability.  Barbara Epke added 
that she was a participant at the MHAC Payment Policy Group meeting and that the 
EWG should keep informed on the progress of that group as the preventable 
complication focus is preventing negative things from occurring versus the work of 
the EWG which is focused on improving on positive things, and that a clinical sub-
group would be formed to review the details of the PPCs.  Ing-Jye Cheng added she 
thought that there is no better group than the EWG to vet the PPCs that, in her view, 
are new and untested.  Also, Ms. Cheng noted there is not consensus that the subset 
of the 14 complications are completely preventable, specifically citing the iatrogenic 
pneumothorax complication which was considered but not ultimately selected by 
Medicare as an HAC. 

 
• Potential new measures queued up for the Maryland Hospital Performance 

Evaluation Guide (HPEG) - Pam Barclay provided an overview of the new measures 
under consideration for adding to the Performance Guide, including: expanding the 
antibiotic timing, selection and discontinuance measures to all surgical strata; adding 
the new CMS surgical care improvement project (SCIP) measures addressing serum 
glucose control, normothermia, appropriate hair removal and venous 
thromboembolism prophylaxis; and, adding the pediatric asthma measures. These 
measures will be posted for informal comment along with a solicitation for comment 
on other measures that should be considered by the HPEG Committee, the 
comments will be addressed as needed, and upon adoption of the new measures by 
the Committee, a notice will be posted in the Maryland Register on the timing of 
data collection and public reporting.  Ms. Barclay noted that there is also a healthcare 
associated infection (HAI) measures committee that has advised on the HAI 
measures that have been newly added or are staged for being added to the Guide, 
and Ms. Feeney noted that data collection had begun July 1, 2008 on the Central Line 
Associated Blood Stream Infection measure and it should also be considered as a 
candidate in the nearer term for the QBR Initiative. In addition, Ms. Feeney noted 
that the perioperative beta blocker use measure was an additional SCIP measure 
CMS was implementing that may be a good QBR candidate.  Ms. Epke supported 
the EWG consideration of these above named measures that have been nationally 
vetted, and noted that these measures could be fast tracked for the QBR Initiative.  
 

• Summary of Maryland hospital participation in reporting additional CMS/JC AMI 
measures – Dr. Grant Ritter provided an update on Maryland participation in data 
collection and reporting on AMI 7a, Fibrinolytic agent in 30 minutes, AMI 8a, timing 
of receipt of PCI. In Maryland, 14 hospitals report on AMI 7a with only 1 hospital 
having the requisite 10 cases to be included in reporting, and 20 hospitals report 8a 
with all 20 having 10 or more cases.  Various EWG members supported serious 
consideration of AMI 8a in light of the level of MD hospital participation. 

 
 



 3

• Potentially Preventable Complication (PPC) and Potentially Preventable 
Readmissions (PPR) Presentation of Maryland Data followed by Q&A- Norbert 
Goldfield, MD and Liz McCullough from 3M presented Maryland-specific data on 
PPCs and PPRs (see Appendix A). Discussion points on the presentation included: 

o Ms. Cheng asked clarification on “by whom” the PPCs are preventable.  Dr. 
Goldfield responded the healthcare team is the responsible party.   

o Ms. Cheng asked if a device failure was due to a defect of the device, would 
that PPC be the fault of the hospital healthcare team.  Dr. Goldfield 
responded that a high rate of device failures relative to other hospitals would 
be considered preventable relative to the lower-rate hospitals. 

o Ms. Epke asked for clarification of the purpose for the PPC and PPR 
presentation.  Mr. Murray responded that PPCs and PPRs are being 
investigated further as they are among the outcome measure options that 
hold possibility and interest for various stakeholders and staff for the QBR 
Initiative.  

o Ms. Epke asked about the quality of the POA indicator. Ms. McCullough 
noted that, when looking at ranges, Maryland’s data was in line relative to 
California and New York that have been reporting POA for several years. 

o Don Hillier asked if Maryland data on hospital charges doubling or tripling 
when PPCs occur is consistent with hospital charges in California and Ms. 
McCullough noted that the California data was consistent. 

o Ms. Cheng asked if the PPC administrative data had been matched with 
medical record clinical data.  Dr. Goldfield responded that, in New York, 
IPRO is currently conducting a chart validation project on the sepsis and 
heart failure PPCs, adding that medical record or administrative data tend to 
get better and more complete if the data are used for public reporting or 
payment. 

o Ms. Epke asked if PPCs were higher in high volume academic hospitals 
versus the smaller community or more rural facilities.  Ms. McCullough 
responded that analysis has not been done in that detail as of yet. 

o Dr. Kazandjian asked whether the statistical method used was consistently 
applied in Maryland and California.  Ms. McCullough responded that the 
same model was used and the comparison is for purposes of evaluating if 
Maryland is in the “ballpark” compared with other states in terms of the 
quality of the data.  Mr. Murray responded that the statistical model used 
and expected levels used in Maryland is a policy determination.  Hal Cohen 
provided the example that Maryland’s rate of urinary tract infections is 
double that of California’s so Maryland may want to set the expected 
differently than California. 

o Mr. Cohen noted that the last slide containing the dollar amounts 
represented by PPCs and PPRs points to the magnitude of these issues, 
adding that incentives can be structured to not necessarily be punitive, 
increasing payment per admission, for example, when hospitals decrease 
their readmission rates.  

o Mr. Murray added that good hospital performers on PPCs and PPRs could be 
recognized that are not currently recognized under the current payment 
system. 



 4

o Mr. Murray asked that comments on PPCs and PPRs be submitted to HSCRC 
in two weeks time and they will be discussed at the next EWG meeting. 
 

• Other business- Ms. Epke noted that the EWG should focus also on the “topped off” 
measures and investigate other process measures that could replace them, with Mr. 
Murray noting that these would come up at the next EWG meeting, and that the date 
and time of the next EWG meeting would be set shortly and HSCRC staff would 
notify the group. 
 

• Adjournment- The meeting was adjourned at 10:40AM. 
 



 5

Appendix A 
 

3M Potentially Preventable Complications and  
Potentially Preventable Readmissions: Summary of Maryland Analysis 

 



 6

 



 7

 



 8

 



 9

 



 10

 



 11

 



 12

 


